

ORDINANCE NO. \_\_\_\_\_

AN ORDINANCE ~~OF THE COUNTY CODE OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA~~ AMENDING CHAPTER 23, MOTOR VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, ~~OF THE COUNTY CODE OF THE COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA,~~ SECTION 23-11\_\_—PARKING REGULATIONS, ESTABLISHMENT OF CROSSWALKS, LOADING, ETC., ZONES – AUTHORIZED BY RESOLUTION, AND SECTION 23-11.12 SAME—CAR SHARE PERMIT PARKING SPACES WITHIN ISLA VISTA TO ADD A NEW SUBSECTION (k) TO PROVIDE FOR CAR SHARE AND ON-DEMAND PERSONALSHARED MOBILITY PARKING SPACES AND TO ADD A NEW SUBSECTION 23-11.12 AUTHORIZING THE MARKING OF CAR SHARE SPACES, PROHIBITING STOPPING AND PARKING IN CAR SHARE SPACES EXCEPT BY HOLDERS OF CAR SHARE PERMITS AND ESTABLISHING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS FOR THE AREA OF ISLA VISTA.

**WHEREAS**, on August 28, 2006, the Governor of the State of California approved and filed with the Secretary of State Assembly Bill No. 2154, Chapter 189 (California Vehicle Code ~~S~~section 22507.1) allowing the County by resolution to designate street parking for car share vehicles; ~~and~~

**WHEREAS**, public parking in the road right-of-way is a service to people with cars and the car share parking spaces are to be available to people who do not have a car; ~~and~~

**WHEREAS**, on-demand personalshared mobility devices offer last mile connections and mobility for people not using cars; ~~and~~

**WHEREAS**, pursuant to Vehicle Code section 21225, the County is not prevented from regulating the parking and operation of motorized scooters; and

**WHEREAS**, using fleet vehicles and personalshared mobility devices has the potential to relieve parking demand in impacted areas.;

**WHEREAS**, public parking in the road right of way is a service to people with cars and the car share parking spaces are to be available to people who do not have a car; and

**WHEREAS**, the Isla Vista Master Plan includes discussion that “A car sharing program might start with nine vehicles at three locations in the first year and according to increased demand, may provide more than 25 vehicles at 6 locations after three years”; and

**WHEREAS**, the Isla Vista Community is uniquely well suited for the operation of a car share program because of its population density and pedestrian orientation.

The Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa Barbara ordains as follows:

**SECTION 1: Ordinance Amendment**

The following sections of Chapter 23 of the Santa Barbara County Code are amended to read as provided herein:

**SECTION 1.**

**Sec. 23-11(k) – Parking regulations, establishment of crosswalks, loading, etc., zones – Authorized by resolution.** ~~A. Santa Barbara County Code Chapter 23, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Article I, Section 23-11 Parking regulations, establishment of crosswalks, loading, etc., zones – Authorized by resolution~~ **Parking regulations, establishment of crosswalks, loading, etc., zones – Authorized by resolution, is hereby amended to add a new subsection (k) as follows read:**

~~“(k) designate~~ **Designate** portions of highway or parking facilities ~~within the area covered by the Isla Vista Master Plan as adopted by the Board of Supervisors on August 21, 2007 under its jurisdiction as~~ **““Car Share Permit Parking” or “Personal Shared Mobility Device Parking””.”**

~~**B. — Santa Barbara County Code Sec. 23-11.12. Same—Car share permit parking spaces within Isla Vista, Chapter 23, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, is hereby amended to add a new Section 23-11.12 as follows to read:**~~

**Commented [SLM1]:** I deleted, since I believe this is going to apply to the entire County, correct?

~~“Sec. 23-11.12 Same—Car Share and On-Demand Personal Mobility Device Permit Parking Spaces Within Isla Vista.~~

(a) Marking. Car ~~share share and on-demand personal shared~~ **mobility device Permit-permit** ~~Parking-parking Spaces-spaces~~ shall be appropriately marked to indicate that they have been designated.

**Commented [SLM2]:** Is this permit in addition to the encroachment permit?

(b) No person shall stop, stand or park a vehicle in a space designated for ~~Car-car Share-share or on-demand personal shared~~ **mobility device Permit-permit** ~~Parking-parking~~ except vehicles with a current ~~Car Share Parking-parking Permit-permit~~ issued for that space displayed in a location that is visible through the windshield from the outside of the vehicle.

**Commented [SLM3]:** Are the PMDs going to have a sticker? To place someplace?

(c) Procedures for the issuance of car share ~~and on-demand personal shared~~ **mobility device** parking permits shall be established pursuant to a duly adopted resolution of the board of supervisors ~~and in conformance with Chapters 9 and 28 of the County Code.~~

(d) Applicants for car share ~~and on-demand personal shared~~ **mobility device** permits shall be required to file a certificate of insurance evidencing coverage for bodily injury and property damage liability as a condition of obtaining a ~~car share~~ permit.

(e) The violation of any condition of a car share ~~or on-demand personal shared~~ **mobility device Permit-permit** shall constitute a violation of this code section and shall be subject to the same penalties as follows:

(1) Any organization, person, firm or corporation, whether as principal, agent, employee or otherwise, violating any provision of a ~~Car-car Share-share or on-demand personal shared~~

mobility device Permit permit, shall be guilty of an infraction and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punishable by (1) a fine not exceeding one hundred dollars for a first violation of conditions; (2) a fine not exceeding two hundred dollars for a second violation of conditions within one year; and (3) revocation of the permit for a third violation of conditions within one year.

(2) Such organization, person, firm or corporation shall be deemed guilty of a separate offense for each and every day during any portion of which any violation is committed, continued or permitted by such person, firm or corporation, and shall be punishable as herein provided.

(3) The remedies provided for herein shall be cumulative and not exclusive.<sup>22</sup>

**SECTION 2: Parts Not Affected**

Those sections of Chapter 23 not set forth in this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect.

**SECTION 3: Publication and Effective Date**

~~SECTION 3~~

This ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty (30) days from the date of its passage and before the expiration of fifteen (15) days after its passage it, or a summary of it shall be published once, together with the names of the members of the Board of Supervisors voting for and against the same in a newspaper of general circulation published in the County of Santa Barbara.

*(Signatures on following page.)*

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Font: Italic

**SECTION 4**

~~This ordinance shall expire 3 years from the date it take effect unless extended by the Board of Supervisors.~~

Formatted Table

**PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED** by the Board of Supervisors of the County Santa Barbara, State of California, on this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2018 by the following vote:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:  
MONA MIYASATO  
COUNTY EXECUTIVE OFFICE  
CLERK OF THE BOARD

COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
By: \_\_\_\_\_  
Deputy Clerk

By: \_\_\_\_\_  
Das Williams, Chair  
Board of Supervisors

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
MICHAEL C. GHIZZONI  
COUNTY COUNSEL

By: \_\_\_\_\_  
Deputy County Counsel

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa Barbara, State of California, this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2010, by the following votes:

\_\_\_\_\_ AYES:

\_\_\_\_\_ NOES:

\_\_\_\_\_ ABSENT:

\_\_\_\_\_ ABSTAINING:

\_\_\_\_\_ COUNTY OF SANTA BARBARA

ATTEST: \_\_\_\_\_  
MICHAEL F. BROWN \_\_\_\_\_ Janet Wolf

~~CLERK OF THE BOARD — Chair, Board of Supervisors~~

By: \_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_ Deputy Clerk

~~APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
DENNIS A. MARSHALL  
COUNTY COUNSEL~~

By: \_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_ Deputy